
City of Swartz Creek 
AGENDA 

Regular Council Meeting, Monday, October 8, 2018, 7:00 P.M. 
Paul D. Bueche Municipal Building, 8083 Civic Drive Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

3. ROLL CALL:

4. MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES:
4A. Council Meeting of September 24, 2018 MOTION Pg. 20 

5. APPROVE AGENDA:
5A. Proposed / Amended Agenda MOTION Pg. 1 

6. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS:
6A. City Manager’s Report MOTION Pg. 3 
6B. Monthly Reports Pg. 26 
6C. Don Shenk Sale Instruments  Pg. 44 
6D. MCL 211.30 Statute on Board of Review  Pg. 59 
6E. Genesee County Park Plan Update & Opt-in Request Pg. 61 
6F. Zoning Ordinances Amendments (Edits Illustrated) Pg. 62 
6G. Sports Creek Raceway Sale Prospect  Pg. 70 

7. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:
7A. General Public Comments

8. COUNCIL BUSINESS:
8A. Don Shenk Sale Review  RESO Pg. 12 
8B. Zoning Ordinance Amendments  RESO Pg. 13 
8C. Board of Review Petition Resolution RESO Pg. 18 
8D. Genesee County Park Plan Cooperation  RESO Pg. 19 

9. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:

10. REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS:

11. ADJOURNMENT: MOTION 

Next Month Calendar   
Downtown Development Authority: Thursday, October 11, 2018, 6:00 p.m., PDBMB  
Fire Board: Monday, October 15, 2018, 6:00 p.m., Public Safety Bldg 
Zoning Board of Appeals:  Wednesday, October 17, 2018, 6:00 p.m., PDBMB  
City Council:   Monday, October 22, 2018, 7:00 p.m., PDBMB   
Metro Police:  Wednesday, October 24, 2018, 10:00 a.m., Metro PD 
Planning Commission:   Tuesday, November 6, 2018, 7:00 p.m., PDBMB 
Park Board:  Wednesday, November 7, 2018, 5:30 p.m., PDBMB 
City Council:   Monday, November 12, 2018, 7:00 p.m., PDBMB   

City Council Packet 1 Octboer 8, 2018



City of Swartz Creek Mission Statement 
The City shall provide a full range of public services in a professional and competent manner, 
assuring that the needs of our constituents are met in an effective and fiscally responsible manner, 
thus promoting a high standard of community life.  

City of Swartz Creek Values 
The City of Swartz Creek’s Mission Statement is guided by a set of values which serve as a common 
operating basis for all City employees. These values provide a common understanding of 
responsibilities and expectations that enable the City to achieve its overall mission. The City’s values 
are as follows:  

Honesty, Integrity and Fairness 
The City expects and values trust, openness, honesty and integrity in the words and actions of its 
employees. All employees, officials, and elected officials are expected to interact with each other 
openly and honestly and display ethical behavior while performing his/her job responsibilities. 
Administrators and department heads shall develop and cultivate a work environment in which 
employees feel valued and recognize that each individual is an integral component in accomplishing 
the mission of the City.  

Fiscal Responsibility  
Budget awareness is to be exercised on a continual basis. All employees are expected to be 
conscientious of and adhere to mandated budgets and spending plans.  

Public Service  
The goal of the City is to serve the public. This responsibility includes providing a wide range of 
services to the community in a timely and cost-effective manner.  

Embrace Employee Diversity and Employee Contribution, Development and Safety  
The City is an equal opportunity employer and encourages diversity in its work force, recognizing that 
each employee has unlimited potential to become a productive member of the City’s team. Each 
employee will be treated with the level of respect that will allow that individual to achieve his/her full 
potential as a contributing member of the City staff. The City also strives to provide a safe and secure 
work environment that enables employees to function at his/her peak performance level. Professional 
growth opportunities, as well as teamwork, are promoted through the sharing of ideas and resources. 
Employees are recognized for his/her dedication and commitment to excellence. 

Expect Excellence  
The City values and expects excellence from all employees. Just "doing the job" is not enough; rather, 
it is expected that employees will consistently search for more effective ways of meeting the City's 
goals.  

Respect the Dignity of Others  
Employees shall be professional and show respect to each other and to the public. 

Promote Protective Thinking and Innovative Suggestions 
Employees shall take the responsibility to look for and advocate new ways of continuously improving 
the services offered by the City. It is expected that employees will perform to the best of his/her 
abilities and shall be responsible for his/her behavior and for fulfilling the professional commitments 
they make. Administrators and department heads shall encourage proactive thinking and embrace 
innovative suggestions from employees. 

City Council Packet 2 Octboer 8, 2018



City of Swartz Creek 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

Regular Council Meeting of Monday, October 8, 2018 - 7:00 P.M. 

TO: Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members 
FROM: Adam Zettel, City Manager 
DATE: October 4, 2018 

ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS 

 MICHIGAN TAX TRIBUNAL APPEALS (Update)
The golf appraisal has been completed and supports the city’s conclusions.  It is
unclear if they even submitted an appraisal for their petition. In the short run, this is
good news because the value should be maintained. In the long run, this is a good
example of how the MTT process places the burden of proof on the taxpayers instead
of the petitioner when it comes to demonstrating value, costing thousands per year to
justify frivolous claims. We intend to seek compensation from the petitioner via an
order from the MTT for unwarranted defense expenditures.

The 2017 Huizinga appeal has a hearing date for November. The 2016 appeal for this
office was very unusual in terms of value sought by petitioner and because of
procedural abnormalities by the petitioner and MTT.  These anomalies included a
drastic change in the requested value days before the end of the discovery process.
The MTT accepted this change but denied the city an extension to respond. Because
of this, we are leery of entering into negotiations.

Heather recommends that we attempt an appraisal of this and another claim from this
office park. Though the values are low, the integrity of the office valuation in the city is
at stake. We are working with the professional service firm that was previously retained
for other appraisal work to complete both appraisals. The cost will be $4,500-$5,000 for
both appraisals.

 STREETS (See Individual Category)
 2017-2020 TRAFFIC IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) (Update)

Preliminary engineering and design is complete, and the grade inspection with the
state is complete. We are on track to bid Fairchild Street this coming winter for 2019
construction.

After this three year cycle is complete, we hope that Miller, west of Morrish will be in
the 2020-2022 cycle. Seymour is not on the radar at this point, though we may try to
put it on the next cycle as well.

 STREET PROJECT UPDATES (Update)
This is a standing section of the report on the status of streets as it relates to our
dedicated levy, 20 year plan, ongoing projects, state funding, and committee work.
Information from previous reports can be found in prior city council packets.

City Council Packet 3 Octboer 8, 2018



Consumers Energy has erected lights on Daval! It appears the 2017 project area is due 
for lights in November. I am not sure why they started on Daval, but at least they are 
doing work.   
 
Helmsley is now in the hopper for 2019 (excluding water main, which is newer). Design 
engineering is to be underway soon.  
 

 WATER – SEWER ISSUES PENDING (See Individual Category) 
 SEWER REHABILITATION PROGRAM (No Change of Status) 

Lining work is complete for Chelmsford and Valleyview Drives. Inspection of 
Winshall has also been completed. There were no unexpected abnormalities, work 
items, or damages reported. Mr. Svrcek will be debriefing with Liqui-Force and 
Rowe PSC about this project and future work soon.  
 
We are also going to have camera footage of many Miller Road and downtown 
lines. This is being provided by Consumers Energy. They are performing the 
inspections because there is some concern that gas lines may have been bored 
through sewer lines during installation in the mid 90s.  
 
This multi-year program is on schedule and budget. Based upon current rates and 
existing fund balance, staff may recommend expending more in the next year or two 
on the sewer rehabilitation plan in order to get some higher risk assets completed 
more quickly. This could include Winshall Drive and Miller Road sections. 
 

 WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT (No Change of Status) 
We are moving forward with the USDA water main replacement project. OHM is 
beginning survey work and engineering. On September 13th, we met with the feds 
about other steps and conditions of funding. We are in a good position to benefit 
from the nearly $5,000,000 grant/loan, with the understanding that we will be putting 
the project out to bid in 2019, with some components to be completed in 2020 and 
2021.  
 
In addition, the Genesee County Drain Commission - Water and Waste Services 
Division has officially given the city notice of their intent to update the 2003 Water 
Master Plan. During this process, they are going to analyze the Swartz Creek area 
to ascertain what current and future needs are. This information will then be used by 
their consultant to make determinations concerning additional water feeds into the 
area and the sizing of the water main, including Miller Road.  
 
Their plan is to rely less on Miller Road and more on secondary feeds that could 
approach the city from the north, south, and west. This would be good for us in the 
long run and negates the concern that Miller Road would need to be increased in 
size and/or used as an intercommunity transmission line.  
 
The city has been working with the county to abandon the Dye Road water main in 
the vicinity of the rail line. Note that we are holding this action pending the master 
plan review. This line is prone to breaks, which can be very costly and dangerous 
near the rail spur.  The intention would be to connect our customers to the other 
side of the street, onto the county line. It appears the transition cost would be about 

City Council Packet 4 Octboer 8, 2018



$25,000. We will work with the county on this matter and report back on our 
findings. 
 
Lastly, the city should probably complete full demolition on the “Brown Road” site 
(the old well head) and sell this property. This is not a high priority, but it is now on 
our radar. 
 

 POLICE SERVICE (Update) 
Metro PD is currently wrapping up the hiring process and should be extending two 
offers any day now. The promotional process is underway with the written exam portion 
completed and oral board examinations to follow within a couple of weeks.  
 
The consolidated violations bureau which would include parking and code for both 
Swartz Creek and Mundy is still a work in progress. The request to increase parking 
fines still stands in order to enhance the deterrent effect.   
 

 HERITAGE VACANT LOTS (No Change of Status) 
The last of the lots acquired prior to the special assessment have been approved for 
sale. The city has two more lots that were acquired through the tax reversion process.  
If there is no objection, I will look to prepare instruments for the two units acquired in 
2017 at new, negotiated pricing if requested by the buyer, JW Morgan, at some point in 
the future. 
 

 NEWSLETTER (No Change of Status) 
The newsletter is out. Let me know what you think. 
 

 HOLLAND SQUARE (No Change of Status) 
The city/DDA is proceeding with design of the streetscape and square features by the 
DDA, with the intention of bidding the project this winter and constructing improvements 
in 2019. A steering committee, similar to the street project review committee, is 
proposed to detail the improvements. The council will have the final say in design, 
award, and budget of this endeavor.   
 
OHM Advisors is completing the design. Note that the professional service expenses 
will be covered by the DDA, with improvement costs to be spread among the DDA, city 
general fund, and the Exxon payment (now in the general fund). There is a total of 
$200,000 in the DDA and city budgets for fiscal year 2019 that is related to this project. 
Estimates indicate the full scope of Phase I could be $350,000, necessitating additional 
general fund dollars as an advance or contribution.  
 

 TRAILS  (Update) 
The DNR grant has been scored, and we resubmitted the application to improve the 
application and improve that score. We believe we are well positioned to get some 
DNR funds. 
 
The MDOT Enhancement grant is conditionally awarded, but I will refrain from an 
announcement until money is obligated!  We hope this covers 65% of the investment. 
Work with Consumers Energy and CN Rail is positive for those project components that 

City Council Packet 5 Octboer 8, 2018



require their engagement. We are still working with the MTA and GM on some 
easements and permissions.  
 
The DNR grant can fund up to $300,000 of the project as well. We will be seeking an 
amount close to that to offset the 35% that the city must cover to match the 
Enhancement grant. Again, we are submitting supplemental materials now. 
 
Note that the city will still be heavily invested in this, even if both grants are awarded. 
Count on a general fund outlay of $200,000 for all engineering, construction, and 
inspection services. Any overages (price changes and change orders) will be locally 
covered as well. 
 
The project timeline has changed based upon the engineer’s recommendation in order 
to meet the DNR award schedule. We lose the 2018 construction season and have a 
new timeline as follows: 

 
1. Plans and estimate complete March 15, 2019. 
2. Grade Inspection package submitted March 29, 2019. 
3. ROW certification March 29, 2019. 
4. Matching funds certified March 29, 2019. 
5. Project listed in approved TIP April 20, 2018- this date was not modified 

from the original application and I have a call into Jacob for verification. 
6. Advertisement start date September 16, 2019. 
7. Construction letting date November 4, 2019. 
8. Construction start date January 20, 2020. 
9. Construction end date September 21, 2020. 

 
 REDEVELOPMENT READY COMMUNITIES (Business Item) 

The planning commission has reviewed the first changes to the zoning ordinance. 
This follows the zoning ordinance technical review that was done earlier this 
summer. The planning commission is recommending some immediate zoning 
changes that are creating some noticeable barriers to mixed use buildings, outdoor 
dining/cafes, downtown signs/pickup windows, and similar restrictions. Lower priority 
changes are likely to follow. 
 
The commission reviewed four separate zoning amendments that have been 
recommended for approval in the form that is included in the accompanying 
ordinance.  I have included the specific amendments in review form in the packet so 
council members can see the existing and proposed language.  
 
The ordinance changes are small but will impact the function and form of some 
developments, making it easier to do certain things in downtown. The changes 
include the enabling of upper floor residential without special permitting, new 
provisions for pick up windows, less rigorous parking standards, and uniform outdoor 
café regulations.  
 
The next meeting of the Economic Development Strategy Committee will be at 10:00 
a.m. on Ocotber 16th, at the Paul D. Bueche Municipal Building.  
 

City Council Packet 6 Octboer 8, 2018



The following RRC components are also at the forefront of our improvement and 
certification efforts: 
 

• Development review flowchart and checklist (In Progress) 
• Integrated community development webpage for city/DDA processes and 

programs (Complete) 
• Economic Development Strategy for the city and its partners (chamber of 

commerce, schools, etc.) (In Progress) 
• Public participation plan and tracking methods (In Progress) 
• Consolidated capital improvement plan (compiled list of street, water, sewer, 

park and other investment for the next six years) (Complete) 
 

 BRANDING (No Change of Status) 
New letter head is on order, and the logo/tagline is being widely used in other media.  
I am working with the webpage manager to revamp our online presence. There are 
also recommendations for additional investments such as downtown and community 
wayfinding signage and similar features.  
 
The developing relationship with the Swartz Creek Area Chamber of Commerce and 
the Economic Development Steering Committee will help to operationalize this 
branding strategy across the community.   
 

 DOG PARK (Update) 
The scouts are still active in fundraising and plan to complete this. They will be 
working at a fundraising event put on by the Baptist Church on October 27th.  
 

 CONSUMERS CONSERVATION PILOT PROGRAM (Update) 
I am not sure how this program faired in the community. I don’t believe there was 
ever a critical mass of engaged users, but I could be wrong. As a promotional tool, 
part of the program included a voter selected contribution to a community project. 
The votes are in and a $15,000 donation will be made to the trail system that is 
proposed! Consumers will look to present the check sometime in 2019! 
 

 DURAND AREA INDUSTRY - PROJECT TIM (Update) 
This project seems cold and quiet. However, it appears there are still valid purchase 
agreements in place for the development, and there are state and local bureaucrats 
continuing work on contingency plans for utility and traffic modelling. It is anyone’s 
guess at this point. Please see prior packets for information on the project and its 
evolution. 
 

 TAX REVERTED PROPERTY USE  (No Change of Status) 
5157 Morrish Road has been sold. The vacant land on Wade Street has not been 
purchased, but the buyer says they will acquire it under approved terms.   
 

 8002 MILLER (Update) 
The ownership of Lasers has transferred and that party is now formally engaged in a 
lease for the lower lever.  The architect has drafted floor plans and has consulted the 
city and occupant regarding the repair and upgrades desired to accommodate the 
existing user and to modernize the upstairs residential unit.  We do not have 

City Council Packet 7 Octboer 8, 2018



specifications or a price scope yet. The city council will obviously need to approve 
any and all bids for contractual services related to the rehabilitation.  
 
The previous report follows: 
 
The city opted to acquire one property this year through the county tax reversion 
process. The property is 8002 Miller Road, the building that houses Lasers Flower 
shop downtown.  We do not hold the deed yet, but I intend to work with the owner on 
a game plan for renovation and use. We will also need a temporary lease and a 
potential plan for building sale.  
 
The plan that appears most agreeable is to lease the building at a market rate to the 
current occupant with the understanding that all collected revenues will be put 
toward operations, maintenance, and renovation of the building. Since the tenant is 
able and willing to work with us on its use, and they are a willing buyer, I will look to 
bring back a renovation plan, budget, and timeline for proceeding. 
 
The building is two levels, with an apartment on the second floor. The condition of 
the building is fair and functional, but there are areas in which updates and upgrades 
are required.  
 
Note that the flower shop is a tenant and this foreclosure in no way reflects the 
status or fiscal health of that business. They do have an interest in working with the 
city on the condition of the building. They also have an interest in potentially taking 
ownership prior to or after improvements.  
 

 DON SHENK HOME SALE (Update) 
The purchase agreement has been approved by the city council and was available 
for public inspection for over 30 days. No comments have been received by the city. 
As such we recommend final affirmation of the sale by the city council, putting this 
behind us.  Upon closing, I am confident labeling this endeavor a successful 
neighborhood investment.  
 

 MILLER ROAD DRAIN (Update) 
The contractor intends to begin repairs as weather permits.  

 
 GROUNDWATER WITHDRAWAL ORDINANCE (No Change of Status) 

The groundwater withdrawal ordinance for the Holland Square project is in the final 
phase. As noted previously, the practical impact of this is small, since wells are no 
longer permitted in the city and there are no known ‘grandfathered’ wells in the 
impacted area.  
 
The council held a public hearing at our meeting on April 23rd. ExxonMobil, the 
Michigan DEQ, and other representatives will now be reaching out to property 
owners to research if there are any well impacts. Once this is done, we should be 
able to proceed with the ordinance.  Representatives of Exxon indicated a fall 
timeline for approval.  

 
 SCHOOL FACILITY PROPOSAL (Update) 

City Council Packet 8 Octboer 8, 2018



There is a ballot initiative now for the Swartz Creek Community Schools. They are 
seeking 3.9 mils in the November general election for facility improvements.  
 
There will be a workshop at 5:15 p.m. in the city council chambers, prior to the 
city council meeting. This is expected to end around 6:15. All city officials should 
attend, and the public is welcome! 
 

 PAUL FORTINO PROPERTY PROPOSAL (No Change of Status) 
The DDA considered next steps at their meeting on September 13th. They approved the 
commission of a survey and architectural renderings.  Please see the DDA packet for 
details. In short, it appears the builder is interested in proceeding with fifteen 1,600 
square foot, two story condos, with garages. There are opportunities and threats, of 
course, but exploration is proceeding methodically.  
 
As noted in the last communication with the builder, there may be a potential ‘ask’ for 
sewer/water tap fee waivers in order to add value to other parts of the site. Though a 
common practice in economic development, the city has not done this in recent history. 
I would be interested to know what the council thinks.  
 

 MUNICIPAL CIVIL INFRACTIONS VIOLATIONS BUREAU (No Change of Status) 
Metro Police, the city attorney, and staff continue to look at the transfer of the 
municipal infraction bureau as well, for reasons similar to the parking violations 
bureau. Since the police are the ones that we want enforcing violations for code, 
blight, and nuisances they should be maintaining the citations, records, and ability to 
prosecute. Doing so will require an ordinance amendment and subsequent 
administrative changes. I will keep the city council informed. 
 

 OTHER COMMUNICATIONS & HAPPENINGS (See Individual Category) 
 MONTHLY REPORTS (Update) 

The September building and code reports are included. Note that injunctive relief 
requests (court actions) for code/building issues has been delayed due to the 
requirement for new ticketing documents and processes. This issue has been 
resolved. The check register and DPW reports are also included. 
 

 RACEWAY SALE (Update) 
There is more chatter regarding a potential sale of the raceway. I am including an 
article that gives some information. This group has the smallest amount of risk in 
buying the raceway under the fast-paced expectations that appear to be the norm 
for purchase agreements with the owner. Given the amount of interest we have 
observed from other entities, I will not get my hopes up because we hear that terms 
and conditions of the sale make the prospect difficult for buyers.  
 
If they are successful, a transition to thoroughbred racing should be relatively fast 
and easy as a reuse of the site.  
 

 BOARDS & COMMISSIONS (See Individual Category)  
 PLANNING COMMISSION (Update) 

The commission began work on the zoning changes on October 2nd.  See the 
update on zoning amendments. This is a business item for our meeting. 

City Council Packet 9 Octboer 8, 2018



 
A site plan for a new downtown project is expected for November.  
 

 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (Update) 
The DDA met on September 13th. They are extremely busy, and their meetings are 
getting to be extremely well attended. The board approved two façade grants, 
engineering services for the streetscape, and architectural services for the 
townhome project. They discussed many other initiatives, including a Fall Family 
Fun Day on October 26th and the potential for a movie screen update. Good things 
are happening! Their next meeting is scheduled for October 11th. At this time, 
despite all of the activity, there are no agenda action items. This meeting may be 
postponed.  
 

 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (No Change of Status) 
There are no pending or expected variances, appeals, or interpretations at this time.  
 

 PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION  (Update) 
The Park Board met on October 3rd in Elms Park. The tot lot was dedicated.  
Updates on the parks were given, including the potential for an aggregate loop trail 
in Elms Park for 2019. Abrams Park tennis courts are in disrepair and require a new 
purpose. Thoughts included a skate park, splash pad, and wedding venue.  
 
The next meeting will be in Abrams Park on November 7th. Moving forward, the 
Christmas decorating contest judging will begin on December 9.  
 

 BOARD OF REVIEW (Update) 
The Board of Review will meet on Tuesday, December 11 to correct qualified errors, 
Principal Residence Exemptions, taxable value uncapping, disabled veterans 
exemptions and poverty exemptions.  

  
NEW BUSINESS / PROJECTED ISSUES & PROJECTS 

 
 BOARD OF REVIEW PETITION OPTIONS (Business Item) 

The city allows resident taxpayers the ability to file their protests before the Board of 
Review in person or by letter.  As the assessor was collecting documentation for the 
next expected audit, we cannot locate the ordinance or resolution that enables the 
ability for protests to be in letter form as well as in person. Note the state statute below: 
 

MCL 2.11.30(8) The governing body of the township or city may authorize, by 
adoption of an ordinance or resolution, a resident taxpayer to file his or her protest 
before the board of review by letter without a personal appearance by the taxpayer 
or his or her agent. If that ordinance or resolution is adopted, the township or city 
shall include a statement notifying taxpayers of this option in each assessment 
notice under section 24c and on each notice or publication of the meeting of the 
board of review.  

 
Since we desire to continue to enable the protests in writing by the taxpayer and their 
agents as a customer service attribute, we are proceeding with a resolution as noted 

City Council Packet 10 Octboer 8, 2018



above.  The result is the same level of service, but the city will then have 
documentation of that provision.  

 
 GENESEE COUNTY PARKS OPT IN REQUEST (Business Item) 

I have included a letter from Barry June, the Acting Director of the Genesee County 
Parks and Recreation Commission. As noted previously, the county is updating its 
master plan (I hope everyone was able to complete their survey). In addition to the 
county plan being updated, there is a request before the city to opt-in to the plan with 
our local park and recreation action plan. This is something the city has done in the 
past to illustrate regional cooperation and to make the endeavors of all participants 
more grant worthy and more transparent. I am including a resolution to enable opting 
in. The park board recommended doing so at their October meeting.  

 
Council Questions, Inquiries, Requests, Comments, and Notes    
   

Small Cities Meeting: The Small Cities meeting was held on October 3rd, at the 
Metro Police Authority headquarters.   
School Bond Workshop: We are hosting a school bond workshop at 5:15pm 
before the council meeting on Monday, October 8, 2018.  
 
 
 

City Council Packet 11 Octboer 8, 2018



City of Swartz Creek 
RESOLUTIONS  

Regular Council Meeting, Monday, October 8, 2018, 7:00 P.M. 

Resolution No. 181008-4A MINUTES – September 24, 2018 

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Minutes of the Regular Council 
Meeting held Monday, September 24, 2018, to be circulated and placed on file. 

Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

Voting For:_______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________  

Resolution No. 181008-5A AGENDA APPROVAL 

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as presented / printed / 
amended for the Regular Council Meeting of October 8, 2018, to be circulated and 
placed on file. 

Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

Resolution No. 181008-6A CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of October 8, 
2018, including reports and communications, to be circulated and placed on file. 

Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

Resolution No. 181008-8A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE FINAL SALE 
INSTRUMENT FOR 5256 DON SHENK 

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

WHEREAS, the city has acquired a residential structure located at 5256 Don Shenk 
Drive from the county via the tax reversion process in 2017 for the purpose of blight 
removal and restoration to improve neighborhood conditions; and  

City Council Packet 12 Octboer 8, 2018



WHEREAS, the city restored the home, including updates to roofing, HVAC, flooring, 
basement finishing, landscaping, appliances, various fixtures, and other components, 
with said services now being complete; and  
 
WHEREAS, the city may recover invested costs upon sale of the residence, but 
additional proceeds must be turned over to the appropriate county agency; and  
 
WHEREAS, the city invited public offers for purchase in July of 2018, and after 
subsequent reviews by the city council and negotiations, approved a purchase 
agreement with a buyer on September 5, 2018 for the price of $134,900; and 
 
WHEREAS, the resulting purchase agreement has been available for public inspection 
for more than 30 days, and no comments have been received; and 
 
WHEREAS, required inspections, underwriting, and title work are all approved and 
prepared for a closing between the buyer and seller. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Swartz Creek City Council 
approves the final sale of 5256 Don Shenk Drive as outlined in the purchase 
agreement included in the October 8, 2018 city council packet.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Swartz Creek City Council authorizes and directs 
the Mayor to execute any and all documents related to the sale, including the deed, 
disclosures, and related documents as required by the title company, state law, and 
related entities. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Treasurer shall make a final accounting of 
revenues and expenses related to the 5256 Don Shenk acquisition, rehabilitation, and 
sale, and surplus proceeds are to be paid to the Genesee County Treasurer in 
accordance with applicable law.  
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 181008-8B A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE ORDINANCE 434 TO 

AMEND THE ZONING MAP AS IT RELATES TO 8118 
MILLER ROAD  

  
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Act 110 of 2006, the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, enables 
cities to regulate land use through the creation and enforcement of zoning maps and 
regulations, and   

 
WHEREAS, the city, in pursing certification as a Redevelopment Ready Community, 
performed a zoning audit that revealed the need for incremental changes to the 
zoning ordinance and; 

 

City Council Packet 13 Octboer 8, 2018



WHEREAS, the planning commission, with the assistance of staff, a professional 
planner, and input by the public, reviewed specific changes to the zoning ordinance 
at their regular meeting on October 2, 2018, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the planning commission, at a public hearing at their meeting on October 
2, 2018 and in reviewing the criteria in Zoning Ordinance Section 31.04, found the 
proposed zoning ordinance amendments to be in the best interest of the public. 
 
THEREFORE, I MOVE the City of Swartz Creek ordains: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 432 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK TO BRING 
SAID ORDINANCE INTO COMPLIANCE WITH THE MICHIGAN ZONING ENABLING ACT, ACT 110 OF THE 
PUBLIC ACTS 0F 2006, AS AMENDED; TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP. 
 
THE CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK ORDAINS: 
 
Section 1. Add the following definition to Zoning: Appendix A Section 2.08. 
 
Outdoor Dining: Outdoor dining is permitted in Swartz Creek only as accessory uses to the main use of a 
property as a restaurant. As such, the outdoor dining area must be adjacent to the main use, either on private 
property or on a public sidewalk. Outdoor cafés consist of tables and chairs, placed for the consumption of food 
by customers. Service may be self‐service or by a waiter.  
 
Section 2. Add the following definition to Zoning: Appendix A Section 2.09. 
 
Restaurant, pick-up window: A standard restaurant with an additional method of operation involving the delivery 
of prepared food to the customer in a motor vehicle, through a pick-up window, for consumption off premises.  
Outdoor menu boards, ordering capabilities, speakers, and/or electronic or remote communication with 
restaurant staff from outside the building are not permitted.  All orders shall be placed by phone or ordered on-
line in advance of window pick-up.   
 
Section 3. Add the following Principle Uses Permitted to Zoning: Appendix A Section 13.01 
 
P. Residential dwellings 

3. Upper floor residential dwellings including apartments and/or condominium units provided they meet 
the minimum room size requirements of Michigan Construction Code. 

   a. Ground floor use must be commercial or office use. 
 
R. Restaurants and other establishments with open front window service or pick-up window service, and 
outdoor eating areas in accordance with Article 20. 
 
S.  Outdoor cafés, outdoor eating areas and open front restaurants, with annual outdoor restaurant permit. 
 
Section 4. Repeal of Zoning: Appendix A Section 13.02E Special land Uses. 
 
E.  Outdoor cafes, outdoor eating areas and open front restaurants.  
 
Section 5. Repeal of Zoning: Appendix A Section 13.03 and replace it with Section 

13.03. 
 
Section 13.03. - Site development requirements. 
 
All permitted uses and special land uses are subject to the following setbacks, height, area, and lot dimensions 
are required as noted below: 
 

City Council Packet 14 Octboer 8, 2018



CBD District Regulations Requirements 

Minimum Lot Area 0 

Minimum Lot Width 0 

Maximum Front Yard Setback 0 feet 

Minimum Side Yard Setback 0 (a) 

Minimum Rear Yard Setback  (a) (b) 

Maximum Lot Coverage 100% 

Maximum Building Height 50 feet or 4 stories 

 
 
Notes: 
a) No side yards are required along the interior side lot lines, except as otherwise specified in the Building 

Code. A four (4) foot high obscuring wall, fence, or greenbelt strip shall be provided on those sides of 
property abutting land zoned for residential. 

 
b) Loading space shall be provided in the rear calculated as five (5) square feet per front foot of building. 
 
Section 6. Add the following Principle Uses Permitted to Zoning: Appendix A Section 14.01 
 
X. Restaurants and other establishments with drive-in or drive-through facilities, open front window service or 
pick-up window service, and outdoor eating areas in accordance with Article 20 and applicable special 
requirements of Article 30. 
 
Section 7. Repeal of Zoning: Appendix A Section 26.02.A.1. and replace it with 

Section 26.02.A.1. 
 
A. Location. 
1. Proximity to building or use being served. Off-street parking for multiple-family and non-residential uses 

shall be located on the same lot or parcel as the building or use being served or within 500 feet of the 
building it is intended to serve, measured from the nearest public building entrance to the nearest parking 
space, except as otherwise permitted for collective use of off-street parking. Ownership shall be shown on 
all lots or parcels intended or used as parking by the applicant. 
 

Section 8. Add the following to Zoning: Appendix A Section 26.03 
 
 
H. Central Business District: All uses within the Central Business District shall calculate parking (residential and 
commercial) to require four (4) parking spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area.   

 
Section 9. Add the following to Zoning: Appendix A Section 26.04 
 
Central Business District  

All uses (residential and commercial) 4 spaces per 1,000 square feet of floor area 

City Council Packet 15 Octboer 8, 2018



 

Restaurant—Fast food with drive-through window 22.0 spaces per 1,000 sq. ft. of gross leasable 

floor area, plus 5.0 spaces between the pick-up 

window and the order station, plus 

10.0 stacking spaces which do not conflict with 

access to required parking spaces per order pick-

up station, plus spaces for employees of a peak 

shift plus at least 2.0 longer spaces designated for 

recreational vehicles and semi-trucks if site is 

within ½ mile of expressway 

Restaurant—with pick-up window 22.0 spaces per 1,000 sq. ft. of gross leasable 

floor area, plus 3.0 stacking spaces which do not 

conflict with access to required parking spaces per 

order pick-up station, plus spaces for employees of 

a peak shift plus at least 2.0 longer spaces 

designated for recreational vehicles and semi-

trucks if site is within ½ mile of expressway 

 
Section 10. Add the following to Zoning: Appendix A Section 20.00 
 
G.  Outdoor dining as accessory to otherwise allowed restaurants, subject to the following requirements:  
A. Within public right of way or on easements for public use. Outdoor dining is allowed by permit, between 

April 1 and October 31 subject to approval by the Zoning Administrator, when located outside of public 
rights-of-way or easements for public use and comply with the following: 

 
1. Outdoor dining areas in the public right of way or on an easement for public use, must apply and receive an 

outdoor dining permit.  Outdoor dining permits must be re-applied for annually. 
2. Pedestrian circulation and access to the building entrance shall not be impaired. A minimum sidewalk width 

of five (5) feet along the curb and leading to the entrance to the establishment must be maintained free of 
tables, chairs, and other encumbrances. The seating in an outdoor dining area must be accessible to 
people with disabilities. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) accessibility requirements must be met within 
the outdoor dining area. Five percent, or at least one, of the seating spaces in the outdoor café area must 
be accessible to people with disabilities. An accessible route connecting the outdoor dining area, the 
business entrance, and the restrooms must be provided.  

3. The seating area on the public sidewalk shall only be limited to the area directly in front of the permitted 
restaurant use to which the seating area is accessory and shall not extend into adjoining sites. Seating may 
also be permitted within the front, side and rear yard area of the lot.  

City Council Packet 16 Octboer 8, 2018



4. The seating area shall be kept free of debris and litter. Written procedures for cleaning and trash 
containment and removal must be submitted. 

5. Tables, chairs, umbrellas, canopies, planters, waste receptacles, and other street furniture shall be 
compatible with the architectural character of the principal building. 

6. Outdoor dining, including any canopies or covers associated with such dining, shall be permitted within the 
required setback. Said canopies or covers may be affixed to the ground. 

7. Except as provided above, all fixtures and furnishings in the outdoor dining area including, but not limited to, 
tables, chairs, bar, server stations, and sources of heat shall be portable and not affixed to the ground, 
building, or other permanent structures. Permanent railings or fences may be permitted only where and to 
the extent that the building code requires an affixed fence for safety purposes. Permanent attachment of 
railings must be approved by the Building Department and permit emergency egress. 

8. The hours of operation of outdoor dining shall not extend past the normal operating hours of the main use, 
the restaurant.  

9. No sound or audio or video entertainment, including but not limited to television or radio playing of music 
and/or sports events, may be piped into, or played so as to be visible or audible from the outdoor dining 
area before 9 am or after 11 pm on Fridays and Saturdays and before 9 am or after 10 pm on Sundays 
through Thursdays.  

10. Outdoor amplification is not permitted. 
11. Outdoor dining areas shall not have permanent fixtures, tables or seating. 
12. Tables, seating, barriers, and other furniture may be required to be removed at the end of every business 

day, if identified as a condition of the outdoor dining permit. 
13. Heating is permitted in outdoor dining areas.  Heaters must be portable and be removed at the end of every 

business day. 
14. Outdoor grills are not permitted in outdoor dining areas. 
15. Outdoor dining areas shall follow any other applicable zoning regulations, such as signs, etc.  
16. Outdoor cafés provide an alternative to sitting inside but are not intended to be permanent expansions of a 

restaurant’s capacity. 
17. Additional signage may not be permitted. 
18. Lighting in the outdoor dining area must meet lighting standards as specified in Article 27. 
19. Requests for outdoor dining shall include submission of a sketch plan to determine compliance with the 

above requirements. The request may be administratively approved by the Zoning Administrator and 
Building Department. At the time of approval, a performance guarantee is required that provides liability 
coverage in an amount determined by the City. 

 
B. Outdoor Dining on Private Property 
1. Outdoor dining is allowed by permit subject to approval by the Zoning Administrator 
2. Permanent fences or barriers may be installed where safety is a concern or where such permanence is 

required by building code. They shall be shown on all applications and permits. 
3. The hours of operation of outdoor dining shall not extend past the normal operating hours of the main use, 

the restaurant.  
4. Outdoor dining located in side or rear yards, abutting or across from a residential district, shall not operate 

before 9 am or after 11 pm. 
5. No sound or audio or video entertainment, including but not limited to television or radio playing of music 

and/or sports events, may be piped into, or played so as to be visible or audible from the outdoor dining 
area before 9 am or after 11 pm on Fridays and Saturdays and before 9 am or after 10 pm on Sundays 
through Thursdays. 

6. The seating in an outdoor dining area must be accessible to people with disabilities. Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) accessibility requirements must be met within the outdoor dining area. Five percent, 
or at least one, of the seating spaces in the outdoor dining area must be accessible to people with 
disabilities. An accessible route connecting the outdoor dining area, the business entrance, and the 
restrooms must be provided.  

Lighting in the outdoor dining area must meet lighting standards as specified in Article 27.  
 
Section 11. Penalties; Sanctions. 
 
 Any person who violates any provision of this Ordinance is subject to the penalties and sanctions 
provided for in Article 32 of the Zoning Ordinance.  

City Council Packet 17 Octboer 8, 2018



 
Section 12. Effective Date. 
 
 This ordinance shall be effective 20 days after publication. 
 

At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Swartz Creek held on October 8, 2018, adoption 
of the foregoing ordinance was moved by __________________________ and supported by 
__________________. 
 
Voting for: 
Voting against: 
 
The Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 
 
      ______________________________ 
      David Krueger 
      Mayor 
 
 CERTIFICATION 
 
The foregoing is a true copy of Ordinance No. 434 which was enacted by the City Council of the City of Swartz 
Creek at a regular meeting held on October 8, 2018. 
 
 

______________________________ 
Connie Eskew, City Clerk 
 
 
Publish Date:  ____________ 
Swartz Creek View 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 181008-8C RESOLUTION TO APPROVE PETITION BY TAXPAYERS 

AND AGENTS TO THE BOARD OF REVIEW VIA 
LETTER 

  
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek has a standing practice to enable the submission 
of protests to the Board of Review in person or by letter, by the taxpayer or their agent, 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Compiled Laws Section 211.30 enable this procedure by 
ordinance or resolution of the local city; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city wishes to continue this practice without interruption. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Swartz Creek City Council hereby 
enables the submission of a protest to the Board of Review to be done in person or by 
letter, by the taxpayer or their agent.  

City Council Packet 18 Octboer 8, 2018



 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 181008-8D RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE SUBMISSION OF THE 

SWARTZ CREEK PARK AND RECREATION ACTION 
PLAN TO GENESEE COUNTY AND TO OPT-IN TO THE 
COUNTY PARK PLAN 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek continues to seek collaboration in providing 
recreational amenities and services to meet the future needs of area residents; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city has a state approved five year parks and recreation master plan 
on file that provides for the implementation and investment strategies to enable the 
community’s park and recreation goals, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Genesee County Parks and Recreation Commission has offered to 
include recreation action plan items of the City of Swartz Creek in its five year plan, 
enabling future opportunities for cooperation, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Swartz Creek Park Board recommended participation of the city at 
their regular meeting on October 3, 2018, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Swartz Creek City Council authorizes 
inclusion of the City of Swartz Creek in the Genesee County Parks and Recreation 
Commission Parks, Recreation Open Space and Greenway Plan, for submittal to the 
State of Michigan, said plan to be developed in calendar year 2018-2019. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
 

City Council Packet 19 Octboer 8, 2018



CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
SWARTZ CREEK, MICHIGAN 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
DATE 09/24/2018 

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Krueger in the Swartz Creek 
City Council Chambers, 8083 Civic Drive. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Councilmembers Present:  Cramer, Florence, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Porath. 
 
Councilmembers Absent:   Pinkston. 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Adam Zettel, Clerk Connie Eskew, 

Director of Public Services Tom Svrcek. 
    
Others Present: Lania Rocha, Bob Plumb, Fay Porath, Steve 

Shumaker, Tommy Butler, Vanessa Warren, Fire 
Chief Dave Plumb, Jentery Farmer. 

 
EXCUSE COUNCILMEMBER  
 
 Resolution No. 180924-01            (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
  Second by Councilmember Florence 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council excuse Mayor Pro Tem Pinkston.  
 
  YES:  Unanimous Voice Vote. 

NO:    None.  Motion declared carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Resolution No. 180924-02                                (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Porath 
  Second by Councilmember Gilbert 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the amended Minutes of the 
Regular Council Meeting held Monday September 10, 2018, to be circulated and 
placed on file. 

 
YES Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Porath, Cramer, Florence.  

  NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
 

City Council Packet 20 Octboer 8, 2018



 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA                 
 
 Resolution No. 180924-03            (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Cramer 
  Second by Councilmember Gilbert 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as, printed for the 
Regular Council Meeting of September 24, 2018, to be circulated and placed on 
file. 

 
YES:  Hicks, Krueger, Porath, Cramer, Florence, Gilbert. 
NO:    None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
  Resolution No. 180924-04                                (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Florence 
  Second by Councilmember Cramer 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of 
September 24, 2018, including reports and communications to be circulated and 
placed on file. 
 

Discussion Ensued. 
 

YES:   Krueger, Porath, Cramer, Florence, Gilbert, Hicks. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:  
 
None. 
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS:  
 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE FISCAL YEAR 2019 BUDGET FOR THE FIRE 
DEPARTMENT 
 
Chief Dave Plumb received notice on the 13th of September that the grant for the air 
compressor that he submitted was denied. This is the second time it’s been denied. He 
has increased the new budget $100,000.00 for the purchase of a new air compressor. 
He wanted council to know that is why the budget has been increased. 
  

Resolution No. 180924-05            (Carried) 
  

 

City Council Packet 21 Octboer 8, 2018



Motion by Councilmember Hicks 
Second by Councilmember Cramer 
 

WHEREAS, the agreement for fire service between Clayton Township and 
Swartz Creek City indicates a specific process for budgetary review and approval 
by the municipalities; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the staff of Clayton Township and the Swartz Creek City have found 
the proposed budget to be acceptable by both parties; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Swartz Creek Fire Board anticipates affirming the proposed 
budget at their regular meeting on September 17, 2018. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City of Swartz Creek approve 
the Fiscal Year 2019 Swartz Creek Area Fire Board Budget, a copy of which is 
attached hereto, gross maximum total not to exceed $807,746.26, and further, 
appropriate an amount not to exceed $403,873.13 from the City General Fund  
and the Fire Equipment Fund as directed by the Treasurer, to be paid 
commiserate of the agreement between the City of Swartz Creek and the 
Township of Clayton, payment being the City’s obligation of one-half of the 
proposed total budget of $807,746.26. 
 

Discussion Ensued. 
 

YES:   Porath, Cramer, Florence, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE SUPERVISORS AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 
 

Resolution No. 180924–06                 (Carried) 
  

Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
Second by Councilmember Florence 
 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk, Ms. Eskew, was appointed on January 25, 2016 by 
virtue of city council adoption of an amended Swartz Creek Supervisors 
Association bargaining agreement that provided terms and conditions of 
employment, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek and the Swartz Creek Supervisors 
Association are parties to a certain Labor Agreement dated July 1, 2017, which 
provides for terms and conditions of the employment of the City Clerk, and; 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Eskew has completed coursework and testing to acquire the 
Michigan Municipal Certified Clerk credentials, following three consecutive years 
of training, and 
 

City Council Packet 22 Octboer 8, 2018



WHEREAS, the City Manager and the Supervisors Association have negotiated 
a compensatory stipend to be integrated into the Agreement. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek City Council 
hereby affirms the Amended and Restated 2017-2019 Collective Bargaining 
Labor Agreement between the City and the Swartz Creek Supervisor’s 
Association, a copy of which is attached hereto. 
 

Discussion Ensued. 
 

   YES:   Porath, Cramer, Florence, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE TRAIL MAINTENANCE 
  

Resolution No. 180924-07            (Carried) 
 

  Motion by Councilmember Porath 
 Second by Councilmember Cramer 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek has partnered with Flint Township and the 
Genesee County Metropolitan Planning Commission to build a non-motorized 
trail, and 
 
WHEREAS, the path, known as the Genesee Valley Trail, will connect Flint 
Township and Swartz Creek at Dye Road, stretching from Norko Drive to Elms 
Park; and 
 
WHEREAS, the path will be an asset to the surrounding area for residents and 
visitors to use for necessary and recreational transportation, and 
 
WHEREAS, the path will need to be maintained to ensure optimal safety and 
enjoyment for users. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Swartz Creek City Council 
commits to maintaining the path in the City of Swartz Creek.  
 

Discussion Ensued. 
 

   YES: Cramer, Florence, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Porath. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE SUBMITTAL OF A MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF 
NATURAL RESOURCES TRUST FUND GRANT FOR A MATCH TO THE MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION GRANT FOR TRANSPORTATION 
ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM (TAP). 
 
 Resolution No. 180924-08            (Carried) 

City Council Packet 23 Octboer 8, 2018



 
  
  Motion by Councilmember Cramer 
  Second by Councilmember Florence 

 
WHERAS, The City of Swartz Creek has recognized through its Parks and 
Recreation Committee the need to increase its trailway system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has received grant funding from the Michigan Department of 
Transportation’s Transportation Alternative Program that the City must provide a 
match and engineering for a total project of $1,005,700.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is requesting $300,000.00 to come from the Michigan 
Department of Natural Resources Trust Fund Grant to be used towards the 
match of the Michigan Department of Transportation’s Transportation Alternative 
Program Grant and the project’s engineering; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is providing a 70% match to the Michigan Department of 
Natural Resources Trust Fund Grant of $705,700.00, of which $568,000.00 of the 
match is from the Michigan Department of Transportation’s Transportation 
Alternative Program Grant and $137,700.00 is from the City’s general funds. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council hereby 
approves the 
Submittal of the Michigan Department of Natural Resources Trust Fund Grant 
and its match. 
 

Discussion Ensued. 
 

   YES:  Florence, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Porath, Cramer. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC: 
 
Steve Shumaker, 7446 Country Meadow Drive, commented on the1% gas monies 
allocated for non-motorized trails and using that for the trails.   Mr. Zettel responded we 
do have to spend 1% of our Act 51 gas and way tax dollars on non-motorized 
transportation over a 10 year rolling period. Our Treasurer does track that and we 
usually spend that on facilities such as sidewalks.  
 
Tommy Butler, 40 Somerset, we got a great fire chief in the city. He feels things seem 
more organized and he is doing a great job. He is proud to see him on the job. 
 
Chief Plumb thanked the council for the approval of the budget. He appreciates the 
cooperate effort between fire department and both municipalities.  The communication 
with the city manager is fantastic and a great partnership.  
 
 

City Council Packet 24 Octboer 8, 2018



 
 
REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
Councilmember Gilbert commented on Frontier removing poles across the street from 
him. 
 
Councilmember Hicks invited everyone to the Park Board Meeting, October 3rd @ 5:30 
at Elms Park. They will be having a dedication of the tot lot. The Park Board will have a 
member at the Family Fun Night October 26th@ 4:30 passing out candy at the trunk or 
treat.  
 
Councilmember Florence informed everyone that Thursday September 27th @ 1 p.m. 
the Senior Center will be holding a town hall meeting.  The topic of the meeting will be 
the Swartz Creek Community Schools Bond proposal. He encouraged city hall think 
about doing the same.  
 
Councilmember Cramer had a resident requested a crackdown of snow removal on 
sidewalks this winter, and parking on the sidewalks.  
 
Councilmember Porath reminded everyone that there will be a Metro PD meeting this 
Wednesday, September 26th.   
 
Mayor Krueger invited everyone to the Chamber of Commerce luncheon tomorrow at 
noon at the Genesee Health Plan building on Linden Road.  We are hosting the small 
cities meeting Wednesday, October 3rd @ 6:30 p.m. at Metro PD and encouraged 
everyone to attend.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

Resolution No. 180924-09             (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
  Second by Councilmember Florence 
 
 I Move the Swartz Creek City Council adjourn the regular meeting at 8:08 p.m. 
 
  Unanimous Voice Vote. 
 
 
 
___________________________   _____________________________ 
David A. Krueger, Mayor     Connie Eskew, City Clerk   

City Council Packet 25 Octboer 8, 2018



City of Swartz Creek10/01/18

Building Permit List
2018

Permit No. Date Applicant Phone Tax ID No. Value of Const/Permit Fee Location Type of Construction

Building

PB1800042 09/14/18 58-35-576-057 $3,300,000 $12,135.00 8138 MILLER RD 48473-1397Com New Building 0SHARP-MILLER ROAD  LLC

PB1800043 09/06/18 (989) 798 0808 58-02-502-026 $9,000 $100.00 5185 WORCHESTER DR48473-1267Roofing 0Brown Home Improvement

PB1800044 09/14/18 58-03-533-182 $1,000 $125.00 5377 DURWOOD DR 48473-1107Res Add/Alter/Repair 0BINGHAM, SASHA

PB1800047 09/27/18 (810) 235 0653 58-03-533-124 $45,000 $420.00 5320 DURWOOD DR 48473-1128Res Add/Alter/Repair 0Motor City Builders Inc.

PB1800048 09/24/18 (810) 210 6942 58-36-651-210 $5,880 $225.00 5929 CROSSCREEK DR48473-1713Res Add/Alter/Repair 0Martin Piotrowski

Total: 5 Permits Value: $3,360,880 Fee Total: $13,005.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Electrical

PE1800032 09/05/18 (989) 792 1188 58-29-551-011 $0 $176.00 5376 MILLER RD 48473-1511Electrical 0Thiel Electric Inc.

PE1800033 09/10/18 (810) 644 7769 58-35-200-014 $0 $390.00 8023 BRISTOL RD 48473-8501Electrical 0LJ Electric LLC

PE1800034 09/17/18 (810) 348 1129 58-03-533-025 $0 $134.00 5331 SEYMOUR RD 48473-1031Electrical 0Crandell Electric Inc

PE1800035 09/24/18 (810) 397 7225 58-03-531-047 $0 $390.00 5260 BIRCHCREST DR 48473-1044Electrical 0Morning Star Electric

PE1800036 09/27/18 (810) 407 7205 58-30-551-020 $0 $140.00 3235 ELMS RD 48473-7928Electrical 0Bowen Electric, LLC

PE1800037 09/25/18 (810) 397 7225 58-36-529-006 $0 $137.00 7168 PARK RIDGE PKWY48473-1562Electrical 0Morning Star Electric

Total: 6 Permits Value: $0 Fee Total: $1,367.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Mechanical

PM180041 09/11/18 (989) 401 7641 58-29-551-011 $0 $160.00 5376 MILLER RD 48473-1511Mechanical 0W. Soule & Company

PM180043 09/17/18 (734) 856 2076 58-36-576-001 $0 $415.00 7026 MILLER RD 48473-1527Mechanical 0Core Mechanical Inc.

PM180044 09/10/18 (313) 255 0053 58-36-576-001 $0 $225.00 7026 MILLER RD 48473-1527Mechanical 0Fire Systems of Michigan, Inc.

PM180045 09/10/18 (810) 644 7769 58-35-200-014 $0 $325.00 8023 BRISTOL RD 48473-8501Mechanical 0LJ Electric LLCCity Council Packet 26 Octboer 8, 2018



PZ18-0025 09/10/18 (810) 691 7040 58-02-200-030 $0 $25.00 5220 MORRISH RD Miscellaneous

City of Swartz Creek10/01/18

Building Permit List
2018

Permit No. Date Applicant Phone Tax ID No. Value of Const/Permit Fee Location Type of Construction

PM180046 09/18/18 (810) 922 9008 58-03-531-047 $0 $325.00 5260 BIRCHCREST DR 48473-1044Mechanical 0Joshua Hoffman

PM180047 09/24/18 (810) 820 8841 58-36-576-001 $0 $165.00 7026 MILLER RD 48473-1527Mechanical 0Absolute Plumbing

Total: 6 Permits Value: $0 Fee Total: $1,615.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Plumbing

PP180017 09/11/18 (989) 401 7641 58-29-551-011 $0 $146.00 5376 MILLER RD 48473-1511Plumbing 0W. Soule & Company

PP180018 09/12/18 (810) 624 0892 58-03-531-047 $0 $390.00 5260 BIRCHCREST DR 48473-1044Plumbing 0Quality Plumbing

Total: 2 Permits Value: $0 Fee Total: $536.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Right of Way

PROW-0092 09/10/18 58-01-502-079 $0 $100.00 5029 THIRD ST 48473-1422Right of way 0CONSUMERS ENERGY COMPANY

PROW-0093 09/12/18 (810) 667 6070 58-36-300-024 $0 $100.00 4437 MORRISH RD 48473-1373Right of way 0Lapeer County ISD

PROW-0094 09/12/18 58-31-526-010 $0 $100.00 6133 BRISTOL RD 48473-7901Right of way 0CONSUMERS ENERGY COMPANY

PROW-0095 09/18/18 (810) 735 7833 58-35-576-057 $0 $0.00 8138 MILLER RD 48473-1397Right of way 0ROGER SHARP

PROW-0096 09/26/18 58-36-576-001 $0 $100.00 7026 MILLER RD 48473-1527Right of way 0Comcast Corporation

Total: 5 Permits Value: $0 Fee Total: $400.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Zoning

PZ18-0023 09/07/18 (317) 271 1130 58-35-576-031 $50,000 $25.00 4459 FORTINO DR 48473-1338Miscellaneous 0Security Vault Works

PZ18-0024 09/13/18 58-02-502-017 $400 $25.00 5127 WORCHESTER DR48473-1228Fence 0
City Council Packet 27 Octboer 8, 2018



City of Swartz Creek10/01/18

Building Permit List
2018

Permit No. Date Applicant Phone Tax ID No. Value of Const/Permit Fee Location Type of Construction

PZ18-0025 09/10/18 (810) 691 7040 58-02-200-030 $0 $25.00 5220 MORRISH RD 48473-7611Miscellaneous 0RANDALL, DAVID & DEBORAH

Total: 3 Permits Value: $50,400 Fee Total: $75.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Fee Total:Permit Total: 27 Value: $16,998.00$3,411,280

Permit.DateIssued  Between  9/1/2018 12:00:00
AM AND 9/30/2018 11:59:59 PM

City Council Packet 28 Octboer 8, 2018



Parcel Number Inspection TypeAddress Scheduled

Inspection List
Completed Result

09/04/2018 09/04/2018 Approved3270 HERITAGE BLVD Final58-30-651-093

09/05/2018 09/05/2018 No Change5251 SEYMOUR RD Status58-03-533-014

09/05/2018 09/05/2018 Complied5178 SEYMOUR RD Status58-03-531-074

09/05/2018 09/05/2018 Partially Complied6509 BRISTOL RD Status58-31-501-007

09/05/2018 09/05/2018 Partially Complied5351 WORCHESTER DR Status58-03-578-013

09/05/2018 09/05/2018 Approved9050 CHELMSFORD DR Final Zoning58-03-528-017

09/06/2018 09/06/2018 Complied5127 WORCHESTER DR Status58-02-502-017

09/06/20188096 INGALLS ST Ordinance58-02-527-023

09/10/2018 09/10/2018 Complied5220 MORRISH RD Status58-02-200-030

09/10/2018 09/10/2018 Violation(s)9323 HILL RD Site Inspection58-03-400-004

09/10/2018 09/10/2018 Approved3270 HERITAGE BLVD Final58-30-651-093

09/10/2018 09/10/2018 Approved4131 MORRISH RD Final58-36-100-015

09/11/2018 09/11/2018 Not Complied5020 FORD ST Status58-02-528-009

09/11/2018 09/11/2018 Partially Complied5123 MORRISH RD Status58-01-100-021

09/11/2018 09/11/2018 Complied5366 WINSHALL DR Status58-02-553-001

09/11/2018 09/11/2018 Approved4131 MORRISH RD Final58-36-100-015

09/11/2018 09/11/2018 Complied8295 MILLER RD Site Inspection58-02-526-092

09/11/2018 09/11/2018 Complied5173 SEYMOUR RD Site Inspection58-03-533-003

09/11/2018 09/11/2018 No Violation5251 SEYMOUR RD Site Inspection58-03-533-014

09/11/2018 09/13/2018 Complied9323 HILL RD Code58-03-400-004

09/11/2018 09/11/2018 Approved4131 MORRISH RD Final Zoning58-36-100-015

09/11/2018 09/11/2018 Approved6292 CONCORD DR Final58-30-651-076

09/11/2018 09/11/2018 Partially Approved6365 AUGUSTA ST Rough58-30-651-005

09/11/2018 09/11/2018 Approved3270 HERITAGE BLVD Final58-30-651-093

09/11/2018 09/11/2018 Approved4131 MORRISH RD Final Zoning58-36-100-015

09/11/2018 09/11/2018 Approved5200 MORRISH RD Backfill58-02-200-032

09/12/20189033 CHELMSFORD DR Ordinance58-03-528-014

09/12/2018 09/12/2018 Approved3269 HERITAGE BLVD Footing58-30-651-096

09/17/2018 09/17/2018 No Change5120 WINSTON DR Status58-02-501-047

09/17/2018 09/17/2018 Approved5331 SEYMOUR RD Final58-03-533-025

09/17/20184306 MORRISH RD Ordinance58-35-576-016

09/18/20185032 BRADY ST Citation58-02-527-007

09/18/20185014 FORD ST Citation58-02-528-012

09/18/20187512 GROVE ST Citation58-01-100-019

09/18/2018 09/18/2018 No Change5251 SEYMOUR RD Status58-03-533-014

09/18/2018 09/18/2018 Approved4131 MORRISH RD Final58-36-100-015City Council Packet 29 Octboer 8, 2018



Parcel Number Inspection TypeAddress Scheduled

Inspection List
Completed Result

09/18/2018 09/18/2018 Approved5200 MORRISH RD Final58-02-200-032

09/19/2018 09/19/2018 Approved4484 MORRISH RD Service58-35-576-053

09/19/2018 09/19/2018 Approved3269 HERITAGE BLVD Backfill58-30-651-096

09/19/2018 09/20/2018 Violation(s)5251 SEYMOUR RD Letter58-03-533-014

09/20/2018 09/20/2018 Approved7132 ABBEY LN Final58-36-526-059

09/20/2018 09/20/2018 Approved7026 MILLER RD Service58-36-576-001

09/24/2018 09/24/2018 Approved4131 MORRISH RD Final58-36-100-015

09/24/2018 09/24/2018 Approved8023 BRISTOL RD Garage & Basement Floor58-35-200-014

09/25/2018 09/25/2018 Disapproved7026 MILLER RD Above Ceiling58-36-576-001

09/25/2018 09/25/2018 Approved3432 HERITAGE BLVD Final58-30-651-062

09/25/2018 09/25/2018 Approved7026 MILLER RD Gas Pressure Test58-36-576-001

09/25/2018 09/25/2018 Violation(s)3415 ELMS RD Ordinance58-30-551-007

09/26/2018 09/26/2018 Approved7026 MILLER RD Footing58-36-576-001

09/26/2018 09/26/2018 Violation(s)4126 ELMS RD Initial58-36-526-020

09/26/2018 09/26/2018 Complied9043 LUEA LN Initial58-03-626-044

09/26/2018 09/26/2018 Approved4290 MORRISH RD Site Visit58-35-400-001

09/27/20184126 ELMS RD Code58-36-526-020

09/27/2018 09/27/2018 Approved7026 MILLER RD Rough58-36-576-001

09/27/2018 09/27/2018 Partially Approved7026 MILLER RD Final58-36-576-001

09/27/2018 09/27/2018 Approved5200 MORRISH RD Final Zoning58-02-200-032

09/27/2018 09/27/2018 Approved4459 FORTINO DR Final Zoning58-35-576-031

09/28/20188468 CHESTERFIELD DR Site Inspection58-02-501-065

All RecordsPopulation:Inspections: 58

Inspection.DateTimeScheduled  Between  9/1/2018 12:00:00 AM AND 9/30/2018 11:59:59 PM

City Council Packet 30 Octboer 8, 2018



Certificates With Inspections

StatusExpiresLast InspectionIssuedSinceDate AppliedAddressCertificate Number

10/01/2018

Certified09/26/202009/26/201809/26/201809/20/201809/20/20189043 LUEA LNCR180020

CompliedCompletedMatt HartKBROWNInitial

Population: Record Count: 1 

Certificate.DateIssued  Between  9/1/2018 12:00:00 AM
AND 9/30/2018 11:59:59 PM

All Records

City Council Packet 31 Octboer 8, 2018



Enforcements By Category 10/01/18

BUILDING VIOLATIONS

StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

E18-093 Closed 09/05/18 09/13/189323 HILL RD

Total  Entries: 1

PARKING

StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

E18-096 Closed 09/10/18 09/11/188295 MILLER RD

E18-097 Closed 09/10/18 09/11/185173 SEYMOUR RD

E18-098 No Violation 09/10/18 09/11/185251 SEYMOUR RD

Total  Entries: 3

UNLICENSED VEHICLES

StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

E18-101 Violation 09/25/183415 ELMS RD

Total  Entries: 1

WEED COMPLAINT

StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

E18-095 Complete 09/06/18 09/26/188096 INGALLS ST

E18-099 Complete 09/12/18 09/26/189033 CHELMSFORD DR

E18-100 Closed 09/17/18 09/26/184306 MORRISH RD

E18-102 09/26/184126 ELMS RD

E18-103 Inspection Pending 09/28/188468 CHESTERFIELD DR

Total  Entries: 5

All RecordsPopulation:Total Records: 10
Enforcement.DateFiled  Between  9/1/2018 12:00:00 AM AND 9/30/2018 11:59:59 PMCity Council Packet 32 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 33 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 34 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 35 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 36 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 37 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 38 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 39 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 40 Octboer 8, 2018



10/01/2018                                    CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK                                              
                                                         CHECK DATE FROM 09/01/2018 - 09/30/2018                                              

Highlighted amount is total for that vendor
Check Date Check Vendor Name Description Amount

Bank GEN CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNT
09/13/2018 45512 A & N GRAPHICS LLC NO PARKING SIGN FOR ELMS RD 200.00

09/13/2018 45513 A+ SUPPLY CO INC LIGHT (2) / BUTTON PHOTO CELL 267.03
RETURN LIGHT (156.00)

111.03

09/13/2018 45514 BEATIE SPRING & WELDING SERVICE REPAIRS ON TRUCK #1202 3,063.21
REPAIRS ON SALT/PLOW TRUCK #1204 2,589.52

5,652.73

09/13/2018 45515 BEVERLY M. CUMMINGS REPLACE MISSING CHECK #045135 - ELMS PAR 100.00
09/13/2018 45516 C & H CONSTRUCTION CO INC STORM SEWER - MANHOLE REBUILD IN FRONT O 2,535.00
09/13/2018 45517 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK REIMB PETTY CASH 125.39
09/13/2018 45518 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/7-9/5/18  A  UB 4125 ELMS RD 30.67
09/13/2018 45519 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/1-8/31/18  STREET LIGHTS 1294 8,878.93
09/13/2018 45520 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3-9/3/18  A  8095 CIVIC DR 1,001.45
09/13/2018 45521 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/01/-8/31/18  4524 MORRISH RD 49.35
09/13/2018 45522 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/01-8/31/18  TRAFFIC LIGHTS 1781 401.25
09/13/2018 45523 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/01-8/31/18  SIRENS TRAFFIC LIGHTS 1997 26.61
09/13/2018 45524 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/01-8/31/18  ELMS PARKING LOT AREA LIGH 31.62
09/13/2018 45525 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3-9/3/18  A  9099 MILLER RD 35.91
09/13/2018 45526 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3/-9/3/18  A  5361 WINSHALL DR 8369 25.66
09/13/2018 45527 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/6-9/4/18  A  8301 CAPPY LN 233.10
09/13/2018 45528 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3-9/3/18  A  5257 WINSHALL DR 24.22
09/13/2018 45529 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3-9/3/18  A  8083 CIVIC DR 663.37
09/13/2018 45530 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3-9/3/18  A  5121 MORRISH RD 364.30
09/13/2018 45531 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3-9/3/18  A  5361 WINSHALL DR #2 RESTR 40.78
09/13/2018 45532 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3-9/3/18  A  8499 MILLER RD 25.66
09/13/2018 45533 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3-9/3/18  A  8059 FORTINO DR 58.78
09/13/2018 45534 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3-9/3/18  A  8011 MILLER RD 24.22
09/13/2018 45535 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/6-9/3/184510 MORRISH RD 34.12
09/13/2018 45536 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/6-9/4/18  A  5256 DON SHENK 26.25
09/13/2018 45537 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/7-9/5/18  A  6425 MILLER PARK & RIDE 64.31
09/13/2018 45538 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/7-9/4/18  A  4125 ELMS RD 4353 55.89
09/13/2018 45539 CUMMINS BRIDGEWAY GENERATOR REPAIR - CAPPY LIFT STATION 1,120.00
09/13/2018 45540 FAMILY FARM AND HOME INC INVOICES THROUGH 8/31/18 1,778.88
09/13/2018 45541 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC 5ML DPD TABLET DISPN F/ TOTAL CHLR 17.75
09/13/2018 45542 FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INSUR/EYEMED SEPT. 2018 RETIREES (6) 100.72 V
09/13/2018 45543 FLINT WELDING SUPPLY OXYGEN CYLINDER 5.00
09/13/2018 45544 GCGC GCGC MEETING 9/20/18 15.00
09/13/2018 45545 GENESEE COUNTY 911 CONSORTIUM REIMB FOR 2018 SIREN UPGRADES 2,419.45
09/13/2018 45546 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER NPDES PHASE II FEES 1,234.92
09/13/2018 45547 GILL ROYS HARDWARE AUGUST 2018 BILLINGS 331.89
09/13/2018 45548 GRAND BLANC CEMENT PRODUCTS INC WALL STONES FOR FIRE DEPT. 315.00
09/13/2018 45549 GREAT LAKES TREE EXPERTS INC EML - TREE REMOVAL & STUMP GRINDING 975.00
09/13/2018 45550 HYDRO DESIGNS INC WATER CROSS CONN CNTRL & COMPL AUG - OCT 879.00
09/13/2018 45551 INNA SHUMPERT DEPOSIT REFUND FROM USE ON 9/3/18 100.00

09/13/2018 45552 INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS TRASH BAGS 56 GAL 108.98
GARBAGE BAGS PER DAVE (3 BOXES) 184.20

293.18

09/13/2018 45553 JEANETTE BROWN DEPOSIT REFUND FROM USE ON 9/8/18 100.00
09/13/2018 45554 JORDAN LEWIS DEPOSIT REFUND FROM USE ON 9/8/18 100.00

09/13/2018 45555 JOSE A MIRELES MOWINGS 9/4/18 1,670.00

City Council Packet 41 Octboer 8, 2018



MOWINGS 9/11/2018 1,150.00
2,820.00

09/13/2018 45556 KCI POSTAGE EST FOR SEPT. 2018 UB BILLING 893.97
09/13/2018 45557 LASHAWNDA HARDEN PARK DEPOSIT REFUND FROM 9/1/18 USE 100.00
09/13/2018 45558 LEGACY ASSESSING SERVICES INC ASSESSING SERVICES SEPTEMBER 2018 2,515.58
09/13/2018 45559 MARI SCHUTTE DEPOSIT REFUND FROM USE ON 9/9/18 100.00
09/13/2018 45560 MATTHEW R WADDILL INSTALL TUBE 15.00
09/13/2018 45561 MORE LIFE TABERNACLE DEPOSIT REFUND FROM 9/3/18 USE 100.00
09/13/2018 45562 PLANTE & MORAN PLLC INTERIM BILL FOR AUDIT JULY 30, 2018 18,300.00
09/13/2018 45563 ROWE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CO DAVAL RECONSTRUCTION 2,490.00
09/13/2018 45564 SERRITA L. HARDEN REPLACE CK #045320 ELMS PARK REFUND 100.00

09/13/2018 45565 SHERWIN WILLIAMS HIGHWAY WHITE AND HIGHWAY YELLOW PAINT 303.05
HIGHWAY WHITE AND HIGHWAY YELLOW PAINT 501.60

804.65

09/13/2018 45566 SIMEN FIGURA & PARKER PLC AUGUST 2018 MONTHLY INVOICE 1,162.00
09/13/2018 45567 STANDARD ELECTRIC COMPANY 2 ELECTRICAL ITEMS FOR PSB 275.00
09/13/2018 45568 SUPER FLITE OIL CO INC FUEL FOR GENERATOR BEHIND FIRE STATION 169.30
09/13/2018 45569 SUPER FLITE OIL CO INC AUGUST 2018 DPW FUEL 1,594.34
09/13/2018 45570 SWARTZ CREEK ELEVATOR BRUSH KILLER 17.00
09/13/2018 45571 SWARTZ CREEK NAZARENE CHURCH DEPOSIT REFUND FROM USE ON 9/9/18 100.00

09/13/2018 45572 UNIFIRST CORPORATION MATS, SUPPLIES 40.51
UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 141.13
UNIFORMS - MATS - SUPPLIES - MAINT 145.20
SENIOR CENTER MATS AND SERVICES 40.51

367.35

09/13/2018 45573 VALUE HOMES UB REFUND FOR 30 BROOKFIELD 60.06
09/13/2018 45574 VERIZON WIRELESS CELL PHONE BILL JULY 24- AUG 24, 2018 299.96

09/13/2018 45575 WINS ELECTRICAL SUPPLY CO INC MOGUL SOCKET FOR ELMS PARK 29.97
CANOPY LIGHT (2) 519.10
RETURN EMT STRAP (5.12)

543.95

09/13/2018 45576 WOODSIDE BUILDERS INC ESCROW- SPRINGBROOK EAST PHASE 2 1,000.00
09/13/2018 45577 FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INSUR/EYEMED SEPT. 2018 RETIREES (6) 30.06

09/17/2018 45578 BLUE CARE NETWORK-EAST MI OCT 2018 RETIREE MEDICAL INS/TYLER 677.90
OCT 2018 RETIREE MEDICAL INS/CLOLINGER 1,289.97
OCT 2018 RETIREE MEDICAL INS/COBRA 629.86

2,597.73

09/17/2018 45579 DELTA DENTAL PLAN OCT 2018 DENTAL RETIREES (6)/TAX 329.28
09/17/2018 45580 STATE OF MICHIGAN STATE SHARE 5-50 PARCELS 642.16
09/17/2018 45581 UNUM LIFE INSURANCE OCT 2018 RETIREE LIFE INS (3) 35.10
09/27/2018 45582 ADAM ZETTEL REIMB FOR APPRAISAL INSTITUTE 10/30/18 115.00
09/27/2018 45583 ADS PLUS PRINTING LLC 2000 WINDOW ENVELOPES 259.61

09/27/2018 45584 BIO-SERV CORPORATION PEST CONTROL/PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 55.00
PEST CONTROL/CITY HALL/LIBRARY-SR CTR 106.00

161.00

09/27/2018 45585 BRADYS BUSINESS SYSTEMS EML/COPY MACHINE MAINT AGREEMENT 1,229.35
09/27/2018 45586 CELIA FREEMAN ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 9/15/18 #1 100.00
09/27/2018 45587 COMCAST BUSINESS CITY HALL MONTHLY INVOICE 9/26-10/25/18 259.60
09/27/2018 45588 COMMUNITY IMAGE BUILDERS EML/PREP & MTG/ZONING AMENDMENTS/PROJ CO 954.00
09/27/2018 45589 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/6-9/4/18 A 8100 CIVIC DR 1,280.31
09/27/2018 45590 D & D TRUCK & TRAILER PARTS SWEEPER PARTS 33.70

City Council Packet 42 Octboer 8, 2018



09/27/2018 45591 D & G SIGNS LLC MAGNETIC SIGN 182.76
09/27/2018 45592 DANIEL L RHANOR PAVILION LIGHTS AT ELMS PARK 140.00
09/27/2018 45593 DIANE REGAN ELMS PARK REFUND 9/23/18 #1 150.00
09/27/2018 45594 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3386 WIRE FLAG BLUE 100 PK (2) 16.00
09/27/2018 45595 FLINT BATTERIES LLC FLASHLIGHTS (2) 33.90

09/27/2018 45596 GEN CTY ROAD COMMISSION CROSSWALK SIGNS 115.12
AUG 2018 S-MTCE & OPERATIONS 2,425.46
I-69 WB OFF RAMP/MORRISH 209.30
CROSSWALK SIGNS 63.75

2,813.63

09/27/2018 45597 GREAT LAKES TREE EXPERTS INC EML/TRIM TREES 300.00
09/27/2018 45598 JAMS MEDIA LLC ORDIN #433 8/23/18 93.00
09/27/2018 45599 JEROME RELERFORD ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 9/22/18 #2 100.00
09/27/2018 45600 JERRY'S TIRE EML/TIRE FOR CHIPPER 145.55

09/27/2018 45601 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERTIES/OTHER (1) 1,225.00
MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERTIES/OTHER (2) 1,230.00

2,455.00

09/27/2018 45602 JULIE KIRBY ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 9/22/18 #1 100.00
09/27/2018 45603 KEVIN GROVES APPRAISALS INC APPRAISAL GEN VALLEY GOLF COURSE 3,500.00
09/27/2018 45604 MY-CAN LLC PORT-A-JON RENTAL 620.00
09/27/2018 45605 OFFICE DEPOT CREDIT PLAN STATEMENT 9/13/18 OFFICE SUPPLIES 124.15
09/27/2018 45606 OHM ADVISORS ENGINEERING SERVICES HELMSLEY DRIVE 2,138.50
09/27/2018 45607 OHM ADVISORS KFC REVIEW 1,102.50
09/27/2018 45608 OHM ADVISORS KFC CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 1,907.50
09/27/2018 45609 OHM ADVISORS SPRINGBROOK EAST PHASE II ENG RVW I 787.50
09/27/2018 45610 OHM ADVISORS SHARP ENG REVIEW I 155.00
09/27/2018 45611 OHM ADVISORS SHARP ENG REVIEW 2 672.50
09/27/2018 45612 ROWE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CO PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REHABILITATION F 6,815.96
09/27/2018 45613 SAMANTHA CASS ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 9/15/18 #2 100.00
09/27/2018 45614 SARGENTS TITLE COMPANY 5256 DON SHENK 250.00
09/27/2018 45615 SELF SERVE LUMBER CO. LUMBER 62.75
09/27/2018 45616 SPARTAN BARRICADING & TRAFFIC CONT 42" GRABBER CONE 429.50

09/27/2018 45617 SUBURBAN AUTO SUPPLY ATF+4 5.99
2 CYCLE OIL 9.99
STARTING FLUID 3.49

19.47

09/27/2018 45618 TERRY LOCKHART GUTTERS & DOWNSPOUTS ON PAVILION 986.00
09/27/2018 45619 U. S. POST OFFICE POSTAGE FOR OCTOBER 2018 NEWSLETTER 599.13

09/27/2018 45620 UNIFIRST CORPORATION MATS, SUPPLIES 40.51
UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 134.59
MATS. SUPPLIES 40.51
UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 134.59

350.20

GEN TOTALS:
Total of 109 Checks: 99,611.95
Less 1 Void Checks: 100.72
Total of 108 Disbursements: 99,511.23

City Council Packet 43 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 44 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 45 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 46 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 47 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 48 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 49 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 50 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 51 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 52 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 53 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 54 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 55 Octboer 8, 2018



Re: 5256 Don Shenk 
 
 
The buyer for this property, Kathryn Dobek, has been fully approved and cleared all outstanding 
underwriting conditions.  The clear to close has been issued and we are ready to proceed with closing at 
the buyer and seller’s convenience.
 
 
 

 
Mortgage Loan Officer 
Jeff Loucks 
jeff@iconmortgage.com 
 (810) 577-2539 
NMLS #137922 
Rates effective 09/26/18.  Mid America Mortgage, Inc., NMLS 150009 (www.nmlsconsumeraccess.org) is an equal opportunity lender, Arizona Lic BK 091759; l
Business Oversight under the California Residential Mortgage Lending Act Lic 4131103 and Finance Lend
31847; Illinois Residential Mortgage Licensee MB.6760775; Kansas Licensed Mortgage Company MC.0025093; Massachusetts Lic ML150009; Washington Lic CL
commitment to make a loan. Loan approval is not guaranteed and is subject to lender review of information.

 

 

 

 

The buyer for this property, Kathryn Dobek, has been fully approved and cleared all outstanding 
underwriting conditions.  The clear to close has been issued and we are ready to proceed with closing at 

s convenience. 

Mid America Mortgage, Inc., NMLS 150009 (www.nmlsconsumeraccess.org) is an equal opportunity lender, Arizona Lic BK 091759; l
under the California Residential Mortgage Lending Act Lic 4131103 and Finance Lenders Law Lic 603J732; regulated by the Colorado Division of Real Estate; Georgia Lic 

Licensee MB.6760775; Kansas Licensed Mortgage Company MC.0025093; Massachusetts Lic ML150009; Washington Lic CL
and is subject to lender review of information. 

The buyer for this property, Kathryn Dobek, has been fully approved and cleared all outstanding 
underwriting conditions.  The clear to close has been issued and we are ready to proceed with closing at 

Mid America Mortgage, Inc., NMLS 150009 (www.nmlsconsumeraccess.org) is an equal opportunity lender, Arizona Lic BK 091759; licensed by the Department of 
ers Law Lic 603J732; regulated by the Colorado Division of Real Estate; Georgia Lic 

Licensee MB.6760775; Kansas Licensed Mortgage Company MC.0025093; Massachusetts Lic ML150009; Washington Lic CL-150009.  This is not a 

City Council Packet 56 Octboer 8, 2018



1

Adam Zettel

From: Lorrie Wilcox <lorrie@sargentstitle.com>
Sent: Wednesday, September 26, 2018 9:40 AM
To: Adam Zettel; 'Jeff Loucks'
Cc: Joanne Ackerman
Subject: RE: closing 5256 Don Shenk

Adam:  Title is ready except for the needed resolution authorizing who can sign the closing documents and deed which 
you mentioned will be done at the city council meeting on October 8th. 
 

Lorrie A. Wilcox 
Escrow Department Manager 
Sargent's Title Company, LLC 
625 S. Grand Traverse St. 
Flint, MI 48502 
Office: (810) 767-2355 
Direct Dial:  (810) 767-2359, Ext. 231 
Fax: (810) 767-2430 
email:  lorrie@sargentstitle.com 
Office hours: 8:30-5:00 (e.s.t.) Mon-Fri 
 

 
 
We value your input on the customer service you received today.  Please click here to share your feedback. 
 

BEWARE OF WIRE FRAUD – INQUIRE BEFORE YOU WIRE!! 
If you are wiring funds to Sargent’s Title Company, please verify wiring instructions by calling your 
local closing office to confirm accuracy. Do not rely on telephone numbers provided in the email. 
Never wire money without first confirming verbally that wire instructions are correct. 
 

Notice:  This email and any files transmitted with it are privileged and confidential.  This email is intended solely 
for the use of the individual(s) or entity to which it is addressed.  If you are not the named addressee, then any 
dissemination, distribution, and copying is strictly prohibited.  Please notify the sender immediately, by email, if 
you have received this email in error and delete the message from your system.  The sender does not accept 
liability for any errors or omissions in the content of this message that arise as a result of email transmission. 

From: Adam Zettel [mailto:AZettel@cityofswartzcreek.org]  
Sent: Wednesday, September 26, 2018 8:58 AM 
To: Jeff Loucks; Joanne Ackerman 
Subject: closing 
 
Can I get a written affirmation from each of you that indicates the buyer and instruments are in place for a closing 
subject to final approval by the city council? 
 

Adam Zettel, AICP 
City Manager 

City Council Packet 57 Octboer 8, 2018



2

Swartz Creek City 
8083 Civic Drive 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
810.635.4464 general office 
810.287.2147 cell 
azettel@cityofswartzcreek.org 
https://www.facebook.com/CityofSwartzCreek 
 

This communication, along with any documents, files or attachments, is intended only for the use of the 
addressee and may contain legally privileged and confidential information. If you are not the intended 
recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of any information 
contained in or attached to this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message 
in error, please notify the sender immediately and destroy the original communication and its attachments
without reading, printing or saving in any manner. This communication does not form any contractual 
obligation on behalf of the sender or the City of Swartz Creek and, when applicable, the opinions 
expressed here are my own and do not necessarily represent those of the City. 
 

City Council Packet 58 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 59 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 60 Octboer 8, 2018



City Council Packet 61 Octboer 8, 2018



Central Business District 
 
Section 13.01 Principal Uses Permitted 
 P. Residential dwellings 

3. Upper floor residential dwellings including apartments and/or condominium 
units provided they meet the minimum room size requirements of Michigan 
Construction Code. 

   a. Ground floor use must be commercial or office use. 
 
  
Section 13.03. - Site development requirements. 
 
All permitted uses and special land uses are subject to the following setbacks, height, area, and lot 
dimensions are required as noted below: 
 

CBD District Regulations Requirements 

Minimum Lot Area 0 

Minimum Lot Width 0 

Maximum Front Yard Setback 5 feet 
0 feet 

Minimum Side Yard Setback 0 (a) 

Minimum Rear Yard Setback 20 feet 
(a) (b) 

Maximum Lot Coverage 0% 
100% 

Maximum Building Height 40 feet or 3 stories 
50 feet or 4 stories 

 
 
 
Notes: 
a) No side yards are required along the interior side lot lines, except as otherwise specified in the 

Building Code. On the exterior side yard which borders on a residential district there shall be 
provided a setback of not less than ten feet on the side, or residential street. If walls of structures 
facing such interior side lot lines contain windows, or other openings, side yards of not less than 15 feet 
shall be provided.     A four (4) foot high obscuring wall, fence, or greenbelt strip shall be provided on 
those sides of property abutting land zoned for residential. 

 
b) Loading space shall be provided in the rear yard in the ratio of at least ten square feet per front foot 

of building and shall be computed separately from the off-street parking requirements. Where an 
alley exists or is provided at the rear of the buildings, the rear setback and loading requirements may 
be computed from the center of said alley.  calculated as five (5) square feet per front foot of 
building. 

City Council Packet 62 Octboer 8, 2018



 
c)  A wall or fence shall be provided on those sides of the property abutting land zoned for residential 

use. 
 
d) The maximum percentage of coverage shall be determined by the use and the provisions of required 

off-street parking, loading and unloading and required yards. 
 
e) A minimum five-foot wide concrete sidewalk shall be provided within the road right-of-way for the 

entire frontage along a street. 
 
f) A minimum of five-foot wide greenbelt shall be provided adjacent to a residential district and no 

structures or off-street parking spaces shall be located within the greenbelt. Grade changes to the 
greenbelt area shall not be permitted unless the planning commission finds that improved screening of 
the Highway Service District could be accomplished by changing the grade. The greenbelt area shall 
be maintained by one of, or a combination of, the following, depending, upon the characteristics of the 
area: 

 
 1. The greenbelt shall be left in its natural state if, in the judgment or the planning  
 commission, it would provide the best protection for the residential district and   
 preservation of the natural setting. The commission may require supplemental   
 plantings, in accordance with the landscape design principles if it is necessary to   provide 
adequate year-round screening. 
 
 2. If sufficient natural vegetation does not exist in the greenbelt area or if, in the opinion  of the 
planning commission, it would not survive or is not suitable for saving, a    minimum four-
foot high landscaped earth berm shall be constructed in the greenbelt   area. Landscaping shall 
be carried out in accordance with the landscape design    principles adopted by the 
planning commission. 
 
 In determining the proper buffering technique, the planning commission shall consider  
 the effectiveness of the buffer in protecting the surrounding area and shall also consider  the 
overall natural and manmade characteristics of the site. The construction of the wall   shall be 
in accordance with the standards set out in Article 28 (Landscaping). 

City Council Packet 63 Octboer 8, 2018



General Business District 
 
Section 14.01 Principal Permitted Uses 
 
X. Restaurants and other establishments with drive-in or drive-through facilities, open front window 
service or pick-up window service, and outdoor eating areas in accordance with Article 20 and applicable 
special requirements of Article 30. 
 
Central Business District 
 
Section 13.01 Principal Permitted Uses 
 
R. Restaurants and other establishments with open front window service or pick-up window service, and 
outdoor eating areas in accordance with Article 20. 
 
 
 
 
Add to Definitions: 
 
Restaurant, pick-up window: A standard restaurant with an additional method of operation involving the 
delivery of prepared food to the customer in a motor vehicle, through a pick-up window, for consumption 
off premises.  Outdoor menu boards, ordering capabilities, speakers, and/or electronic or remote 
communication with restaurant staff from outside the building are not permitted.  All orders shall be placed 
by phone or ordered on-line in advance of window pick-up.   
 

Article 26. - Off-Street Parking and Loading/Unloading Requirements 

Restaurant—Fast food with drive-through 

window 

22.0 spaces per 1,000 sq. ft. of gross leasable 

floor area, plus 5.0 spaces between the pick-

up window and the order station, plus 

10.0 stacking spaces which do not conflict with 

access to required parking spaces per order 

pick-up station, plus spaces for employees of a 

peak shift plus at least 2.0 longer spaces 

designated for recreational vehicles and semi-

trucks if site is within ½ mile of expressway 

City Council Packet 64 Octboer 8, 2018



Restaurant—with pick-up window 22.0 spaces per 1,000 sq. ft. of gross leasable 

floor area, plus 3.0 stacking spaces which do 

not conflict with access to required parking 

spaces per order pick-up station, plus spaces 

for employees of a peak shift plus at least 2.0 

longer spaces designated for recreational 

vehicles and semi-trucks if site is within ½ mile 

of expressway 

 
 

City Council Packet 65 Octboer 8, 2018



Section 26: Parking and Loading 

 

Section 26.02. - General requirements. 
In all zoning districts, off-street vehicle parking facilities shall be provided and maintained as 

herein prescribed: 

A. Location. 

1. Proximity to building or use being served. Off-street parking for multiple-family and non-

residential uses shall be located on the same lot or parcel as the building or use being served 

or within 300 500 feet of the building it is intended to serve, measured from the nearest 

public building entrance to the nearest parking space, except as otherwise permitted for 

collective use of off-street parking. Ownership shall be shown on all lots or parcels intended 

or used as parking by the applicant. 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………. 

H. Central Business District.   

1. All uses within the Central Business District shall calculate parking (residential and 

commercial) to require four (4) parking spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area.   

 

Section 26.04 - Schedule of Off-Street Parking Requirements 

Add to the table: 

Central Business District  

All uses (residential and commercial) 4 spaces per 1,000 square feet of floor area 

 

City Council Packet 66 Octboer 8, 2018



Outdoor Dining Areas 
 
 
 
 
 
CBD Central Business District 
 
Section 13.01. - Principal uses permitted. 
No building or land shall be used and no building shall be erected except for one or more of the 
following specified uses, unless otherwise provided in this ordinance. 
   
F. Restaurants, brewpubs, taverns and bars (not including drive-throughs), where the patrons are 
served while seated within the building occupied by such establishments.  
   
Add: G. Outdoor cafés, outdoor eating areas and open front restaurants, with annual outdoor 
restaurant permit. 
 
   
Section 13.02. - Special land uses. 
The following uses may be permitted, upon review and approval by the city council, in 
accordance with the general and specific standards for special land uses listed in Article 30. 
 E. Outdoor cafés, outdoor eating areas and open front restaurants. 
 
 
Add to Article 2: Definitions:  
Outdoor Dining: Outdoor dining is permitted in Swartz Creek only as accessory uses to the main 
use of a property as a restaurant. As such, the outdoor dining area must be adjacent to the main 
use, either on private property or on a public sidewalk. Outdoor cafés consist of tables and 

chairs, placed for the consumption of food by customers. Service may be self‐service or by a 
waiter.  
 
 
Add to General Provisions Article 20 
 
Outdoor dining may be allowed only as accessory to otherwise allowed restaurants, subject to the 
following requirements:  
A. Within public right of way or on easements for public use. Outdoor dining is allowed by 

permit, between April 1 and October 31 subject to approval by the Zoning Administrator, 
when located outside of public rights-of-way or easements for public use and comply with the 
following: 

 
1. Outdoor dining areas in the public right of way or on an easement for public use, must apply 

and receive an outdoor dining permit.  Outdoor dining permits must be re-applied for 
annually. 

City Council Packet 67 Octboer 8, 2018



2. Pedestrian circulation and access to the building entrance shall not be impaired. A minimum 
sidewalk width of five (5) feet along the curb and leading to the entrance to the 
establishment must be maintained free of tables, chairs, and other encumbrances. The seating 
in an outdoor dining area must be accessible to people with disabilities. Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) accessibility requirements must be met within the outdoor dining area. 
Five percent, or at least one, of the seating spaces in the outdoor café area must be 
accessible to people with disabilities. An accessible route connecting the outdoor dining area, 
the business entrance, and the restrooms must be provided.  

3. The seating area on the public sidewalk shall only be limited to the area directly in front of 
the permitted restaurant use to which the seating area is accessory and shall not extend into 
adjoining sites. Seating may also be permitted within the front, side and rear yard area of 
the lot.  

4. The seating area shall be kept free of debris and litter. Written procedures for cleaning and 
trash containment and removal must be submitted. 

5. Tables, chairs, umbrellas, canopies, planters, waste receptacles, and other street furniture 
shall be compatible with the architectural character of the principal building. 

6. Outdoor dining, including any canopies or covers associated with such dining, shall be 
permitted within the required setback. Said canopies or covers may be affixed to the ground. 

7. Except as provided above, all fixtures and furnishings in the outdoor dining area including, 
but not limited to, tables, chairs, bar, server stations, and sources of heat shall be portable 
and not affixed to the ground, building, or other permanent structures. Permanent railings or 
fences may be permitted only where and to the extent that the building code requires an 
affixed fence for safety purposes. Permanent attachment of railings must be approved by 
the Building Department and permit emergency egress. 

8. The hours of operation of outdoor dining shall not extend past the normal operating hours of 
the main use, the restaurant.  

9. No sound or audio or video entertainment, including but not limited to television or radio 
playing of music and/or sports events, may be piped into, or played so as to be visible or 
audible from the outdoor dining area before 9 am or after 11 pm on Fridays and Saturdays 
and before 9 am or after 10 pm on Sundays through Thursdays.  

10. Outdoor amplification is not permitted. 
11. Outdoor dining areas shall not have permanent fixtures, tables or seating. 
12. Tables, seating, barriers, and other furniture may be required to be removed at the end of 

every business day, if identified as a condition of the outdoor dining permit. 
13. Heating is permitted in outdoor dining areas.  Heaters must be portable and be removed at 

the end of every business day. 
14. Outdoor grills are not permitted in outdoor dining areas. 
15. Outdoor dining areas shall follow any other applicable zoning regulations, such as signs, etc.  
16. Outdoor cafés provide an alternative to sitting inside but are not intended to be permanent 

expansions of a restaurant’s capacity. 
17. Additional signage may not be permitted. 
18. Lighting in the outdoor dining area must meet lighting standards as specified in Article 27. 
19. Requests for outdoor dining shall include submission of a sketch plan to determine compliance 

with the above requirements. The request may be administratively approved by the Zoning 
Administrator and Building Department. At the time of approval, a performance guarantee is 
required that provides liability coverage in an amount determined by the City. 

City Council Packet 68 Octboer 8, 2018



 
B. Outdoor Dining on Private Property 
1. Outdoor dining is allowed by permit subject to approval by the Zoning Administrator 
2. Permanent fences or barriers may be installed where safety is a concern or where such 

permanence is required by building code. They shall be shown on all applications and 
permits. 

3. The hours of operation of outdoor dining shall not extend past the normal operating hours of 
the main use, the restaurant.  

4. Outdoor dining located in side or rear yards, abutting or across from a residential district, 
shall not operate before 9 am or after 11 pm. 

5. No sound or audio or video entertainment, including but not limited to television or radio 
playing of music and/or sports events, may be piped into, or played so as to be visible or 
audible from the outdoor dining area before 9 am or after 11 pm on Fridays and Saturdays 
and before 9 am or after 10 pm on Sundays through Thursdays. 

6. The seating in an outdoor dining area must be accessible to people with disabilities. 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) accessibility requirements must be met within the outdoor 
dining area. Five percent, or at least one, of the seating spaces in the outdoor dining area 
must be accessible to people with disabilities. An accessible route connecting the outdoor 
dining area, the business entrance, and the restrooms must be provided.  

7. Lighting in the outdoor dining area must meet lighting standards as specified in Article 27.  
 
 

City Council Packet 69 Octboer 8, 2018



September 25, 2018 | Norma

George Kutlenios, president of the Michigan Horsemen's Benevolent and Protective Association, told harnessracing.com Tuesday
afternoon that a group of Thoroughbred owners are in talks to purchase Sports Creek Raceway near Flint. Kutlenios said there was 
good possibility that harness racing could return to Sports Creek, which has sat empty since it closed at the end of 2014.

"We have a group interested in purchasing Sports Creek and getting it up and running for Thoroughbred and Quarter Horse racing 
2019," said Kutlenios. "We're sitting tight right now waiting for all the ducks to line up. Right now the plans look good and everything
seems to be falling in place, we just don't have anything concrete to actually hang our hat on."

Kutlenios said the new group applied for 30 dates in 2019 in accordance to the Aug. 31 deadline set by the Michigan Gaming Contro
Board. Race dates are expected to be awarded sometime in October.

"By statute we have to apply for 30 days and we applied for 30 days," said Kutlenios. "We have a date hearing coming up in Octobe
but that is contingent on the track being purchased and the new owners getting it up and running and starting simulcasting and get
the track surface ready and the barns ready. We'd race starting around (Kentucky) Derby day (in early May)."

Thoroughbred racing in Michigan took a hit after the sudden closing of Hazel Park this spring just a few days before the meet was
scheduled to open. With the closing of Hazel Park, that left Northville Downs as the only racetrack still in operation in Michigan.

A few days after Hazel Park closed, officials at Northville Downs announced that track had been sold for development and would be
closing in 2020. Northville's director of operations John Carlo told harnessracing.com at the time that a location would be secured to
build a new racetrack, which as of yet has not been done.

As for harness racing returning to Sports Creek—which opened in 1986 and raced only Standardbreds—Kutlenios said he has been

Sports Creek sale near; could harness return? http://www.harnessracing.com/news/sportscreeksalenearcouldharnessreturn.html?print_friendly

1 of 2 10/3/2018, 2:24 PM

City Council Packet 70 Octboer 8, 2018



contact with Michigan Harness Horsemen's Association president Tom Barrett.

"We thought Northville would close before Hazel Park would; we thought Hazel would be the last track standing in Michigan," he sa
talked to Tom (Barrett) and if that day came we would certainly get back together and go to a split meet at Hazel Park. We're for all t
horsemen, we're not going to be a game killer for anybody. I've already talked to the potential new owners about doing a split meet t
for harness and Thoroughbreds, just like they did at DRC and Hazel."

Kutlenios doesn't expect a new racetrack to be built without additional gaming revenue, such as from casinos or sports betting.

"No one is going to build a new track in Michigan based on the products we have available now," he said. "If we had a casino license
slots or instant racing machines, it'd be a different story. Someone might take that leap and put together a track to take advantage o
possible income, but that's just not the case in Michigan."

Kutlenios said he's expressed to legislators that any form of sports betting has to include racetracks.

"We're going to write in that there has to be brick and mortar locations, which includes the three casinos (in downtown Detroit) and a
licensed racetracks," said Kutlenios. "That has to be a part of it. There is no way they can just have casinos get it. That's our goal.

"Where racing is in Michigan, until we get additional funds of revenue like ADWs (advance deposit wagering) or anything else that
comes down the pike, it makes sense to have one central location for everything. Hazel Park would have been the best bet for
everybody, but it wasn't meant to me."

« Back

Home :: News Archive :: Racing Reports :: Sale Reports :: Calendars :: Guide Directory :: Contact The Staff
Advertising Rates & Information For: Horseman And Fair World Magazine :: HarnessRacing.com :: Harness Racing Weekend Preview

Website Design by eLink Design, Inc. A Lexington Web Design Company :: Hosted by Intelliwire, LLC, An Offsite Backup Company
Site contents may not be reproduced without the expressed written consent of the publisher.

© 2018 Horseman Publishing Co., Lexington KY, All Rights Reserved

Sports Creek sale near; could harness return? http://www.harnessracing.com/news/sportscreeksalenearcouldharnessreturn.html?print_friendly

2 of 2 10/3/2018, 2:24 PM

City Council Packet 71 Octboer 8, 2018


	2018-10-08, Council Mtg Template
	TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members
	ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS

	2018-09-24 September 24 Council Minutes
	Permit list Sept. 2018
	Inspection List Sept. 2018
	Certificates Sept. 2018
	Enforcements Sept. 2018
	Sept 2018 DPS Reports
	check register September 2018
	CheckRegister

	5256 Don Shenk Purchase Agreement
	Dobek CTC letterhead
	Title Email
	MCL
	GCP
	CBD site standards edited
	Pick-up window Swartz Creek edited
	Swartz Creek Parking 
	Swartz Creek Outdoor Eating Areas edited
	Sports Creek sale near; could harness return_



